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     Town Council Agenda Report  

 
 
Date:   August 11, 2020    Item No. 9 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Town Council 
 
Subject: DISCUSSION ON CODE ENFORCEMENT TOP 15 AND OVERVIEW 

OF STATISTICS 
 
From:  Douglas Robertson, Town Manager 
 
Submitted by: Guy Eisenbrey, Code Enforcement Manager 
   
Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A    
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Town Manager and staff recommend the Town Council receive and file the following 
year end information from the Code Enforcement Department and potentially discuss for 
future use in determining priorities, human resource allocation and focal points for 
enforcement and solid waste efforts.   

BACKGROUND 
The Code Enforcement Department has experienced significant changes in the past two 
years. There have been changes in management, enforceable ordinances, fine structures 
and enforcement processes, as well as an increase in illegal dumping and illegal cannabis 
cultivation operations. Additionally, the Sheriff Department and Code Enforcement 
personnel have increased efforts to cleanup and abate illegal homeless encampments 
and is consistently conducting enforcement sweeps that are intended to address the 
Town’s criminal transient population. 

Over the last fiscal year, the Code Enforcement Department handled 3,004 proactive, 
reactive, and problem oriented enforcement cases and 2,675 rental property 
maintnenance inspections, for a combined total of 5,679 cases. The top fifteen violations 
were as follows. 

15. General Dilapidation (buildings)  (48) 
14. Faulty Electrical    (51) 
13. Parking on Unimproved Surface  (59) 
12. Without Business License   (62) 
11. Trash carts/Dumpsters Left Out  (66) 
10. Property Maintenance Certificate Required (99) 
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09. Commercial Vehicle Parking   (107) 
08. Building Permit Required   (123) 
07. Expired Business License   (123) 
06. Inoperative or Abandoned Vehicle(s)  (183) 
05. Trash and Debris    (214) 
04. Graffiti      (372) 
03. Overgrown, Dead, Decayed, Dry, or 

Hazardous Vegetation (weeds)  (458) 
02. Trash and Debris    (558) 
01. Illegal Dumping    (610) 

 
ANALYSIS 
The Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, and Code Enforcement management staff 
formally meet monthly, and frequently in between, to discuss Code Enforcements current 
events and trends. During these discussions, the more complex cases and programs 
such as Rental Inspections, Neighborhood Cleanups and Household Hazardous Waste 
are also discussed and direction is given related to public information dissemination and 
future program growth.  

In the report, but not in the top fifteen is “Prohibited Cannabis Operations” and “Camping 
Prohibited” with a total of 45 and 37 cases, respectively. These cases are typically more 
complex and require greater involvement by senior code enforcement personnel. 
“Prohibited Cannabis Operations” are mostly those cases wherein whole homes are 
converted to accommodate an illegal grow operation and “Camping Prohibited” cases 
typically involve criminal tranisents who have been offered and refused assistance from 
the Sheriff Department’s Homeless Outreach Team. Code Enforcement often responds 
reactively to these complaints at the request of Sheriff Department peronnel and either 
issues notice and/or fines or removes trash and debris as deemed appropriate and within 
guidelines established by Code Enforcement Department policy. 

Based on the aforementioned list of top fifteen violations, established and driven by 
complaints received by Code Enforcement, the priorities of our community are 
outstandingly apparent. Unless otherwise directed to do so, Code Enforcement will 
continue to focus its efforts on the top 4 and has recently hired four Maintenance Worker 
I’s that will form an illegal dumping cleanup and violation abatement crew utilizing Solid 
Waste funds and grants from CalRecycle. The crew will focus on removing illegally 
dumped materials from vacant lots and the roadside aided by a recently acquired three 
quarter ton truck and fourteen foot hydraulic dump trailer. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact. 
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ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Code Enforcement Violation Counts Report for period from July 1, 2019 to June 
30, 2020.
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